Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
May 14,2019
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, May 14, 2019 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
Cliff Braly and Commissioner Starr Murphy. Commissioner Pete Hall was via phone.

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Donna Scott, Dick Pakkala,
Rich Beland and Claudie Beland.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the May 14, 2019 agenda. Mayor
Fowler asked to add “Deer Removal” to New Business. Commissioner Braly moved to
accept the agenda as amended. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to April 9, 2019 regular meeting
minutes. Commissioner Hall moved to approve the minutes as amended. All ayes.

Public Comment: Rich Beland of 104 Best Lane, Minnesott Beach asked if there would be
a public hearing on the purchase of the golf course and would the town residents be able to
vote on it. Mayor Fowler said, “yes, there would be a public hearing, the date and time
would be discussed later in this meeting and no, the town residents would not be able to vote
on the issue. The commissioners would vote on it.” Mr. Beland asked what gives the
Commissioners the right to spend $270,000 of surplus money. Mayor Fowler said the town
has purchased property before. Mr. Beland asked what the benefits are to the Town to
purchase a company going bankrupt. Mayor Fowler said the Town is not buying the
company, only the land. Mr. Beland said the Town would end up taking care of it because
the Golf Club will go bankrupt. Mayor Fowler said if the club does close, the town would
be responsible to maintain the land to some level. The Town’s ordinances require grass
cutting to take place by June 1, August 1 and October 1. Mr. Beland asked why is that any
different than letting the club go bankrupt and have whomever owns the land to take care of
it. Mayor Fowler said the Town would control approximately 150 acres to do with as the
Town wants. He related that the Town has had limited success with owners coming in and
taking care of their property. Mr. Beland said he thought there should be a referendum and
let the public vote. He said when the mayor and commissioners ran for election, this was
not an issue. It came up after you were elected and the people may not have elected you if
they knew you were going to do this. Mayor Fowler said that is not the type of government
we have. We have a representative government. All of the board is up for reelection in



November. Anyone interested in becoming a member of this board can register in July for
the election. Mayor Fowler thanked Mr. Beland for his input.

Mr. Dick Pakkala presented an invoice to the board for work done by Mr. Robert Rauch of
Hagerstown, MD, on the drainage ditch on the east side of Hwy 306 where water drains
from Phillips Drive under Hwy 306 onto the Lee Farms. He said they had permission from
Mr. Lee Jones to do this. Commissioner Braly said the town had talked with Mr. Lee Jones
regarding the town modifying the drains east of Hwy 306 to allow water to drain more
freely. Mr. Jones had indicated he did not want any trees removed. Commissioner Braly
also said care had to be taken to not disturb the designated wet lands near the tower on the
land. There is a $2500 fine to dig in the wet lands. Mr. Pakkala said he had not seen the
ditch Mr. Rauch had dug. He said he was presenting the invoice because it had helped the
folks on that corner of Phillips. Commissioner Braly said he thought it would be a
dangerous precedence to set to pay the invoice. Mr. Pakkala said he had no idea Mr. Rauch
was doing the work but thinks he needs to be reimbursed for work the town should have
done. Mayor Fowler thanked him for bringing this to the town’s attention.

Town Manager’s report: Mrs. Braly reported there were 3 approved zoning permit
applications issued.

Mrs. Braly reported she’d heard nothing regarding 520 Country Club Dr. The plan is to file
a tax lien in July. She also reported the Spring Newsletter was mailed.

Current Finances: Commissioner Hall reported revenues are coming in as expected with
expenses within the budgeted totals. The Town’s current assets as of April 30, 2019 are:
First Citizen's Bank Checking $3,417.43; First Citizen's MM $301,308.86; CressCom
Bank’s Savings $218,581.77; North Carolina Management Trust is $207,926.09; Petty Cash
$50.00. The town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings totaling $228,596.28.
Total assets for the Town are $983,368.83.

The commissioners all have a copy of the financial report which, by reference, is made a
part of the minutes and may be viewed at the Town Hall.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel said he’d received an email from
Becca Lang that Arlington Place was going into a new stage of development. They
want the Planning Board to take a look at the preliminary plans to offer any objections
and/or advice up front. A planning board meeting will be held in June for review and
discussion on this. Commissioner Garfinkel said the Planning Board met in May to
bring all members up to speed on the negotiations with MG&CC. No action was
taken.

Old Business for discussion and possible motion or action:

1. Minnesott Golf & Country Club purchase update — Mayor Fowler presented
an informational list he had written regarding the purchase of the property. He asked
for any additions the commissioners might have. He reported the club had a



membership meeting May 4. An overwhelming majority voted to accept the
proposal made by the Town of $270,000 purchase price with a $1/yr. for 6-year
lease. Mayor Fowler said the club had given them an updated income statement. He
said, that without a purchaser of the property, the Club would be about $22,000 in
the red by years’ end. Commissioner Hall said that his review of the statement
indicated that if the club gets the $270,000 and barring a catastrophic failure of any
equipment, they should survive another couple year’s. Commissioner Hall said in
the lease terms, the Town needs to require a financial report regularly so there are no
surprises. Mayor Fowler reiterated the town was purchasing the land not the
business. Mayor Fowler said the Club Board had mentioned having a Town
Commissioner on their board. But, he said, the Town needs to confer with the
Town’s attorney to make certain the Town would not be put in a position of liability.
Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to set a hearing date. Commissioner Murphy
asked why the town people could not vote on this. Mayor Fowler said it is the state
law. Commissioner Hall said the duty of the elected officials is to make good
conservative decisions and to spend the tax dollars wisely. Commissioner Murphy
moved to set the date at the regular Board meeting June 11. All ayes.

2. Town projects: Commissioner Braly reported no work had been done
on the Hardison Dr culvert because the utilities were just located and some may need
to be moved before work can begin. The culvert at the intersection of Country Club
Drive West and Bennett Road is collapsing and will need to be replaced as well.

The state put gravel and dirt in and around the culvert and that is holding right now.
The utilities have been located there. Steven Harris will meet with Commissioner
Braly next week to look at what needs to happen with the electrical cables at both
locations. Commissioner Braly asked if the Planning Board would discuss
establishing an Ordinance that requires the utility companies to get permission from
the Town on where to dig in the town’s rights-of-way. They are partly responsible
for some of the drainage issues.

Commissioner Braly said the drop inlets had been located that will aid in
fixing some of the drainage issues on Phillips Drive at the corner of Peel Drive at the
Johnson property. Work will begin there shortly.

Mayor Fowler asked about the drain on Country Club Drive by the Willis
property. Commissioner Braly said that was still on his list to accomplish this
month.

Mayor Fowler said regarding the invoice presented by Mr. Pakkala, the
Town cannot condone or pay for unauthorized work. Commissioner Braly moved to
not pay the invoice presented by Mr. Pakkala on behalf of Mr. Robert H. Rauch, of
Hagerstown, MD. All ayes.

Spring Clean-up - Commissioner Braly said spring clean-up Thursday and
Friday, May 2nd and 3™ went very well. The Town collected over 15 tons of trash



and vegetative debris. He commended the volunteers for a job well done, especially
Mayor Fowler and Craig Baker, who picked up all of the trash throughout the Town
that filled the Town’s dump truck 5 or 6 times. The preliminary cost is $1,261.71.

3. Havelock Waste Water — Commissioner Murphy reported she contacted the NC
Division of Water Quality district supervisor for our area, Dr. Robert Tank. He said
this has been going on for years because the infrastructure was laid in the 1950s. He
said Havelock has been slowly trying to update this. Dr. Tank explained that every
town has had issues with sewer leakage. He used Oriental as an example. They’ve
had multiple violations of untreated water leaking because of excessive water going
into the treatment plant. There is one manhole in Havelock that is causing all of the
problems. He said that Havelock has had numerous incidents but they have been
upfront about it. They had two experienced operators leave and go to the base to
work leaving them shorthanded. The state is working with the City of Havelock.
The only way to completely correct the situation is to spend 3.8 million dollars to get
a new water treatment plant. Commissioner Murphy said Dr. Tank said he would be
happy to speak to anyone. He said Commissioner Murphy was the first person to
contact him about this. Commissioner Murphy said she called Mayor Lewis of
Havelock. He said he would be glad to come to Minnesott Beach and talk with the
commissioners. Mayor Lewis said no one had contacted him or come to a meeting
asking about this sewer issue. He said the only time the manhole overflows is during
excessive rain. Commissioner Murphy said there is an issue, however it is being
addressed by both the City of Havelock and the State. Mayor Fowler thanked her for
her diligent research and effort to bring this information to the Town.

New Business for discussion and possible action:

1. 2019-2020 Budget proposal — Commissioner Hall presented the proposed
budget of $518,500. He proposed the tax rate remain unchanged at
$0.11/8100. This includes a 5% salary increase for all employees. Mayor
Fowler suggested a modest increase of 2-3% and make up the difference in
the Christmas bonus. Commission Hall recommended a 2.5% for all
employees plus an addition to the Christmas to equal the 5% increase.
Commissioner Hall said the biggest changes in the budget are the
continuing drainage and road repairs and the purchase of the golf course
property. Commissioner Hall moved to have the public hearing at the next
Board meeting, June 11,2019. All ayes.

2. Deer Removal — Mayor Fowler asked for a check of $50 to the NC Wildlife
for a permit to allow bow hunters to cull the deer population again this year.
Last season, 19 deer were taken from Minnesott Beach. The meat is given
to different organizations who can use the food. Commissioner Murphy
moved to continue this. All ayes.



Miscellaneous:

Mayor Fowler said he had spoken to Tom McCleary about the sale of Wayfarer’s
Cove Marina. The purchase seems to be imminent and is expected to close sometime next
week.

Commissioner Garfinkel asked for clarification of the hearing date and time. Mayor
Fowler said the meeting could go well into the evening. Commissioner Hall moved to
change the time of the Public Hearing for the purchase of the property aka Minnesott Golf
& Country Club to 6pm with the regular meeting following at 7pm. All ayes.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn the regular meeting.

All iyes.
bl Xloatt , Donna Scott, Town Clerk




